
417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 

 

   
  

◊ Attachment 
 

City Council Agenda 
The City Council meeting is open to the public and will be held at City Hall. 

Meetings will be streamed via Facebook Live ( https://www.facebook.com/cityofvalleyfalls) Please email questions to cityadmin@valleyfalls.org before the meeting. 
 
August 17, 2022 6:30 PM 
Regular Meeting 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
ROLL CALL – City Council and Staff  
MINUTES – Regular Meeting of August 3, 2022 ◊ 
MINUTES – Special Meeting of August 10, 2022 ◊ 
INVOICES - $48,530.15 ◊ 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS & GUESTS: 
Public Comment Policy ◊ 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS: 

1. 207 Sycamore Status Update 
2. 204 Walnut Status Update 
3. USD #338 Vacating Elm Street Petition 
4. Audit Presentation – Agler & Gaeddert 
5. Ranson Financial Rate Review 

a. Sewer  
b. Water  

6. Emergency Snow Route Ordinance #14-209.1 
7. Skid Steer Broom Attachment 
8. ACE Pipe Cleaning Sewer Lagoon - $3,718.40 
9. Kansas Pride Program 

 
TABLED ITEMS:  

1. Alley Behind Post Office 
2. Myer Option to Purchase 

 
REPORTS: 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Audree Aguilera ◊ 
PUBLIC WORKS: Bill McCoy ◊ 
POLICE: ◊ 
MAYOR: Jeanette Shipley  
FIRE DISTRICT: Salih Doughramaji 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD: Audree Aguilera or Chair 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Audree Aguilera or Chair 
CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS/ FEEDBACK/ IDEAS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS/ COMMUNICATIONS: 
City offices closed September 5th in observance of Labor Day.  
Public Hearing for Zoning change at 1509 Linn St on September 1st at 6:30 PM at City Hall. 
Public Hearing for Budget and Revenue Neutral Rate on September 7th at 6:30 PM at City Hall.  

https://www.facebook.com/cityofvalleyfalls
mailto:cityadmin@valleyfalls.org


417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org                                                                                                                                                                              Page 2  

 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION ◊ 
I move the city council recess into executive session to discuss a claim pursuant to Attorney – Client 
privilege matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(2) to include: the City Attorney and City Administrator. The 
open meeting will resume in the city council room at _____PM. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



CITY OF VALLEY FALLS 
August 3, 2022 

 
Open Meeting 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm by Mayor Jeanette Shipley.  Council members present 
were, Jennifer Ingraham, Salih Doughramaji, Gary McKnight Judy Rider, and Matt Frakes. 
Staff present:  Audree Aguilera, City Administrator, Bill McCoy, Public Works, Chris Weishaar, City 
Clerk, and Lori Glissman, Pool Manager. 
 
Others present:  Dianne Heinen, Scott Heinen, Skyler Brown, Sallie Meyer, Nancy Gatzemeyer, 
Suzanne Willhoite, & Lori Williams. 
 
Minutes: 
The minutes from the July 20, 2022, meeting was presented.   
Salih moved to approve the minutes with grammatical corrections.  Jennifer seconded the motion.  
Motion carried 5-0 
 
Vouchers: 
The August 3, 2022, vouchers were presented.  Salih moved to approve vouchers totaling 
$18,305.87.  Judy seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Pool Report: 
Swimming lessons complete - 
● around 185 signed up for lessons 
● Some refunds were issued as they were unable to attend 
Closing Saturday, August 13th at 7:00 
● Checking with staff if anyone is interested in keeping open during the week after school starts 
4:00-7:00. Depends on availability 
● Depends on the weather. 
● Depends on the amount of chlorine in the tank 
● Will need a week or so after closing to clean up and pack away. 
Upcoming Pool Parties 
● Friday, August 5th - Staff End of Season Party 
● Saturday, August 6th - 
● Tuesday, August 9th - Giant Communications - ad has been shared on Facebook there will be 
food and prizes. 
● Thursday, August 11th - PTO Back to School Party 
Awning purchased and received to cover the concession stand counter 
● This is being stored in the shed. Will put up next season 
Creating a list of what needs to be considered for purchase or repair. 
● Guard chair 
● Pool ladder in the 5ft is missing a step 
● Driveway entrance to pool. Rock is washing away, 
● Additional tables (2) and lounge chairs. 
● Consider a different desk. The one we have is falling apart. Probably good for another year. 
● Speakers and speaker wire 



Meeting Minutes Page 2 
 
 
Public Comments & Guests:   
Skyler Brown, Suzanne Willhoite, Lori Williams, Nancy Gatzemeyer spoke reference the need for an 
officer who cares about Valley Falls. Some mentioned Travis Courter. 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS: 
 
A. Audit Presentation – Agler & Gaeddert – Harold Agler was not present.  Audree will reschedule. 
 
B. 2022 Standard Traffic Ordinance # 14-118 – Roll call was done.  Gary made a motion to 
approve the Ordinance.  Jennifer seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
C. 2022 Uniform Public Offense Code Ordinance #11-116 – Roll call was done.  Gary made a 
motion to approve the Ordinance.  Jennifer seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
D. Payment Agreement Policy – Audree presented the new payment agreement for delinquent 
utilities.  Jennifer made a motion to approve the agreement.  Gary seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
E. Blue Cross Blue Shield Rates – Audree presented the rate plan for BCBS for 2023.  There is a 
slight increase.  Salih made a motion to approve the new rates.  Jennifer seconded.  Moton 
carried 5-0. 
 
F. Meyer Option to Purchase – Sallie Meyer was present to revisit her son Craig’s option to 
purchase the lot behind his home on 19th Street.  The council took no action and asked Audree 
to arrange a meeting with the city attorney. 
 
G. Valley Falls Community Foundation Agreement – Audree presented to paperwork for the 
Community Foundation to setup an account for the swimming pool.  Salih made a motion to 
approve the agreement.  Judy seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
H. Alley Behind Post Office – Audree presented paving/cement estimates of around $10,500.00 
for the alley.  Discussion was had to contact property owners to share in the cost.  Tabled topic. 
 
I. Skid Steer Broom Attachment – Price to purchase an attachment with a gutter brush is 
$10,854.  Matt suggested contacting SourceWell for estimates.  Audree will look into it.  Tabled. 
 
J. Blue Cross Blue Shield exercise equipment grant – Audree and Jeanette discussed the grant 
available through BCBS for an exercise area.  Council asked for pictures and more information. 
 
K. 2023 CDBG Grant – No new information 
 
L. Waste Tire Grant – Audree will look into the grant. 
 
M. USDOT Grant – Safety Action Plan – The grant application is due September 15th.  Audree 
will apply.  The city would need to submit an action plan. 



Meeting Minutes Page 3 
 
 
Table Items were mentioned and decided to be removed from the agenda for now. 
 
City Administrator: 
1) CDBG Sewer Project Phase 1- Design and Environmental in progress. Should have final 
designs in the next couple weeks. Bids anticipated for early fall 2022. Construction anticipated 
in 2023. 
2) CDBG Sewer Project Phase 2 – Preliminary Engineering Report in progress. 2023 CDBG Grant 
year is pausing the sewer/ water grants. Project will be postponed to 2024 if changes are 
approved. 
3) American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) – Projects completed to date include: gWorks Software, 
RV Park Electrical Upgrade. Funds used to date: $23,851.40. Projects pending to date include:  
K-16 Entry Signs. Funds planned for projects: $7,000. Remaining Funds: $145,106.96. 
4) Opioid Settlement – We received a first disbursement of $283.10. The Attorney General’s 
office does not know when rest of funds will be disbursed. Anticipated $5/ Capita. 25% of 
Settlement shared 50/50 with cities and counties. Other 75% will be used for grants. This first 
round of payouts on the settlement will allow partnerships with other local entities. 
5) Budget – Budget presentation and state budget form complete. Public Hearing for Budget 
and RNR set for September 7th. 
6) RV Park Electrical Update – Complete. 
7) 811 The City of Valley Falls has not been part of 811. I am working on the paperwork and 
mapping to add us to the Kansas 811 system. We are required by law to be a part of 811. 
8) Awing at Pool Awning for the pool has been ordered and delivered. 
9) Payment Agreement Drafted an official policy for dealing with payment plans/ extensions. 
10) Post Office Permit Closed the account and received refund for our postage stamp. We must 
have 500 bills to mail out. We no longer have the quantity due to people signing up for 
paperless billing on new software. 
11) Flag Pole Was working with Guard Sales to get a flag pole placed at city hall. The flag pole 
cannot be placed for a few reasons. 1) If a free-standing pole was placed it would either be to 
close to the building or electric lines. Cannot be placed on building due to unknown structural 
integrity of brick. 
12) Pond on Oak Street was treated for duck weed. 
13) Fire Hydrant on Linn – Met with Schulte Supply for plan on water hydrant repair. Parts 
being ordered. 
14) Economic Development Board – Will meet again on August 15th. 
15) Planning Commission –Next meeting is September 1st. We now have two vacant spots. 
There are 4 active members on 6-person board. Advertised on for open positions. 
16) Audit –After audit approved, then the final audit will be sent of to requesting agencies. 
17) Personal Policies & Guidelines – Reviewed with EMC on June 3rd. Final revisions and copy 
received. Sent to Leonard for review. Will review with council at work session on August 10th. 
18) Entry/ Welcome Signs – Received USACE approval. Must apply with KDOT for signs in ROW. 
Working with PEC for estimate on engineering. 
 
 



Meeting Minutes Page 4 
 
 
19) K-4 / K-16 Street Lights – Estimate received from PEC. Around $30,000 to add lighting. 
KDOT is going to perform a safety study. If warranted by KDOT, the light cost will be covered by 
KDOT. Safety study is anticipated to be completed in Spring 2023. 
20) Memorandum of Understandings – Received signed MOU from Athletic Association. Have 
reached out to Recreation for update on when it will be signed. 
21) Automatic Water Meters – 244 meters installed to date. Total of 493 water meters. 
22) Rate Study – Rate study presentation at City Council on August 17th. 
23) Fire Hydrant Testing - KRWA will be flow testing all our fire hydrants after water tower 
work is complete. This service is free. 
24) Tucking Lot – working on hauling in dirt and leveling out lot. 
25) Hurst Water Tower – Installed valve. Work anticipated to begin at the end of September/ early 
October. 
 
Sewer/Water/Streets/Alleys/Parks/Pool:   
Water: 
Working with Audree to get the one deficiency from KDHE inspection corrected 
Audree and I had a meeting with Schulte about the hydrant at 5th and Linn we have a plan to 
enable us to be able to replace the leaking hydrant 
Sewers: 
Got Kenneth and I enrolled to take the class and test for our sewer certification at the KWEA 
conference Aug 30 – Sep 1, 2022 
Streets: 
Put up new signage on the gates for ballfield 
Replaced the old “NO TRUCKS” Image sign with a new one on Sycamore 
Finished cleanup for 4-H parade 
Sprayed the pond on Oak Street to kill duckweed seems to be working will keep an eye on it 
and retreat as needed 
Picked up new supply of sand and pea gravel 
Working on relandscaping the ditch line by the boat ramp 
Tree limbs and brush clean-up on hold until we get Chevy truck back. 
General: 
Took Chevy to Cable Dahmer. No estimate timeline for repair. 
 
Mayor: 
Advised the streets looked nice for the fair parade.  Jerry Heinen bought Ice Cream shop. 
Jessie Nickelson expressed interest on being on the Planning Commission.  Matt Hisey is thinking 
about serving.  Boat ramp is looking good.  The Pharmacy is offering free school supplies.  A new 
stylist will be working at Another Monday Morning. 
 
Fire District:  No Report 
Economic Development Board:  No Report 
Planning & Zoning Commission:  No Report 
 



Meeting Minutes Page 5 
 
 
City Council Comments: 
Matt is opposed to the Tucking Lot being developed for city maintenance supplies and how it will 
affect the beauty of the City.  Jennifer asked why a different fence couldn’t be used and possibly 
have a mural painted on it?  The topic will be placed on the work session agenda. 
Judy asked about the old pool status.  Audree advised the surveyor is not reaching out. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Jennifer made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Gary seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 
 

APPROVED: __________________________ 
 JEANETTE SHIPLEY, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST:  ___________________________________ 
 CHRISTINE WEISHAAR, CITY CLERK 



CITY OF VALLEY FALLS 
August 11, 2022 

 
Special Open Meeting 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm by Mayor Jeanette Shipley.  Council members present 
were, Jennifer Ingraham, Salih Doughramaji, Gary McKnight, and Judy Rider.  Matt Frakes was 
absent. 
Staff present:  Audree Aguilera, City Administrator and Eddie Rivera, Police Officer. 
 
Others present:  Dee Heinen, Skyler Brown, and David Key. 
 
Public Comments & Guests:   
Skyler Brown handed out a petition signed by almost 100 people wanting Travis Courter as Police 
Chief and some people wrote comments also. 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS: 
 
Kansas Pride Program – David Key did a presentation at the Mayor’s request about what the Kansas 
Pride Program is and what it can do for a City. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  
Gary moves the city council recess into executive session to discuss police chief applications 
pursuant to the non-elected personnel matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319 (b) (1) to include: mayor, 
city council, and city administrator.  The open meeting will resume in the city council room at 
8:00PM.  Jennifer seconded the motion.  Carried 4-0 
 
Gary moves the city council recess into executive session to discuss police chief applications 
pursuant to the non-elected personnel matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319 (b) (1) to include: mayor, 
city council, and city administrator.  The open meeting will resume in the city council room at 
8:15PM.  Jennifer seconded the motion.  Carried 4-0 
 
No Action Taken 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Gary made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:16 P.M.  Judy seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried 4-0. 
 
 

APPROVED: __________________________ 
 JEANETTE SHIPLEY, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST:  ___________________________________ 
 CHRISTINE WEISHAAR, CITY CLERK 



CITY OFFICE 
417 Broadway • Valley Falls, Kansas 66088-1200 

Phone 785-945-6612  •  Fax 785-945-3341 

 

 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 
 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2022 
 
 
INVOICES IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF:  $48,530.15 
 
APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF KANSAS 
 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 
 
I hereby certify that the attached bills are just, correct, and remain unpaid, and that the amount therein is 
actually due and owing according to law.  
 

Approved by: 
 
 

______________________________ 
City Administrator 

 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _______ day of August, 2022 
 
 

______________________________ 
City Clerk 

   
  



Mon Aug 15, 2022  4:18 PM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE REPORT Page     1
 8/04/2022   THRU   8/17/2022                                                               
                                                                                                                                                        

APCOUNRP 07.01.21  City of Valley Falls                                                 OPER: AA 



Mon Aug 15, 2022  4:18 PM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE REPORT Page     2
 8/04/2022   THRU   8/17/2022                                                               
                                                                                                                                                        

APCOUNRP 07.01.21  City of Valley Falls                                                 OPER: AA 



Mon Aug 15, 2022  4:18 PM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE REPORT Page     3
 8/04/2022   THRU   8/17/2022                                                               
                                                                                                                                                        

APCOUNRP 07.01.21  City of Valley Falls                                                 OPER: AA 



417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 

 

   
  

 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY 
 
This is a business meeting of the governing body for the City of Valley Falls. We strive to run a smooth and 
efficient meeting. 
 
Public Comment is limited to 3 minutes per person. Speakers shall state their name and address. This is 
intended for citizens to express their views. City Council Members will not engage in dialogue with the 
speaker. Belligerent, rude, and offensive speakers will be stopped immediately. Citizen should reach out to 
City Council Members to have personal discussion of their concerns outside of City Council Meetings.  
 
Any comment for agenda items shall be taken only during the specific agenda item.  All questions posed 
during public forum should be answered within the specific agenda item by any City Council Member or 
followed up as needed by staff in a timely manner during regular business hours following the meeting. 
 
Citizens desiring to comment on matters of a general nature, not specific to an agenda item, shall sign up in 
advance of the meeting & shall provide name and address, and the purpose or nature of the request. This 
request should be received by the City Administrator before Friday at noon preceding the meeting. No action 
or formal comment will be taken on such request at the council meeting. Staff will follow up in a timely 
manner during regular business hours following the meeting. 
 
  
 



























































Audree Guzman, City Administrator













Audree Guzman, City Administrator

07/25/2022



















































ORDINANCE # 14-209.1 
 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO PARKING OF VEHICLES UPON STREETS 
DESIGNATED AS EMERGENCY SNOW ROUTES WHEN SNOW REMOVAL 
OPERATIONS ARE NECESSARY AND REPEALING ORDINANCE #14.209. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
VALLEY FALLS, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Findings of the Governing Body.  
The Governing Body finds that parking of vehicles on certain streets covered by a heavy 
accumulation of snow is a matter affecting the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of 
Valley Falls for the reason that parked and stalled vehicles impede snow removal operations and 
cause serious traffic congestion and hazard. 
 
Section 2. Declaration of Traffic Emergency.  
Whenever snow has accumulated or there is a possibility that snow will accumulate to one (1”) 
inch or more in depth and snow removal operations will be required this ordinance shall take 
effect and until such traffic emergency is terminated it shall be unlawful between the hours of 
12:00 a.m. and 7:00 a.m. to park a vehicle on any street designated as an emergency snow route 
as defined in Section 5 of this ordinance. 
 
Section 3. Termination of Traffic Emergency.  
Upon the removal of the snow from the streets the parking emergency shall be terminated. 
 
Section 4. Removal of Parked Vehicles.  
All vehicles parked on emergency snow routes must be removed with the enactment of a traffic 
emergency. All stranded or abandoned vehicles impeding snow removal operations or causing 
traffic congestion may be removed or caused to be removed by law enforcement to the nearest 
garage or other place of safety. The vehicle may not be recovered until the towing and storage 
are paid in full by the owner of the vehicle.  
 
Section 5. Emergency Snow Routes; Establishment; Signs.  
Upon the enactment of the Emergency Snow Ordinance, the streets listed in this section 
designated and marked with “Emergency Snow Route” signs. These signs shall be posted on the 
right-hand side of the driving lane at intervals not to exceed one (1) block. The emergency snow 
route includes the following streets: Broadway Street from Maple Street to Linn Street, Linn 
Street from Broadway Street to 19th Street, Oak Street from Broadway Street to 19th Street, and 
Walnut Street from Broadway Street to K-16 Highway. Appropriate signs shall be installed along 
each of said streets designated emergency snow routes. 
 
Section 6. Penalty.  
Any operator of a vehicle who shall violate the provisions of this ordinance shall, upon 
conviction thereof, be guilty of a traffic infraction and fined an amount not to exceed One 
Hundred Dollars ($100.00) plus court costs.  
 



Section 7. Repeal. This ordinance repeals ordinance #14.209 and any other ordinance in conflict 
thereof. 
 
Section 8. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect and shall be in full force and effect 
after its publication in the City of Valley Falls official newspaper.  
 
Passed by the Governing Body of the City of Valley Falls, Kansas, and approved by the 
Mayor, this 17th day of August 2022. 
 
 
 
        ______________________________
        Jeanette Shipley, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Christine Weishaar, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 



 

Page 1 of 4 

 

CONTRACT PROPOSAL 

Date:  _8/12/2022___ 

 

Customer: CITY OF VALLEY FALLS    

Attn: BILL     

Address: 417 BROADWAY     

VALLEY FALLS, KS 66088  

Email: PUBLICWORKS@VALLEYFALLS.ORG    

Phone: 913-945-6612    

            

Proposal #: _22-840___  

 

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  

 

Valley Falls, KS – Clean 8” Lagoon Line 

 

2. SCOPE OF WORK:   

 

Ace Pipe Cleaning, Inc. (“APC”) will provide the labor, equipment, material, and supplies for work performed on the Project 

in accordance with this Proposal (the “Work”), and will include the following:   

 

APC will provide an operator and Jetter/combination to clean an 8-inch lagoon line at 417 Broadway in Valley Falls, KS.  

 

3. PRICING AND PAYMENT:   

 

DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

Operator and Jetter Combination 8 HRS $215.00   $1,720.00  

Additional Laborer 8 HRS $110.00   $880.00  

Fuel Surcharge 10 HRS $39.84   $398.40  

Operator and Jetter Combination Overtime 2 HRS $230.00   $460.00  

Additional Laborer Overtime 2 HRS $130.00   $260.00  

TOTAL ESTIMATED PRICE $3,718.40 

 

Payment shall be due Net 30 days from APC’s invoice date. Billing will reflect actual quantities achieved.  

 

4. SCHEDULE:  To be determined upon acceptance of this Proposal.  

 
5. CLARIFICATIONS/ASSUMPTIONS; TERMS & CONDITIONS:   

The Clarifications/Assumptions are part of this Proposal.  APC’s Terms and Conditions are attached and are incorporated into and 

part of this Proposal.  Please review the Clarifications/Assumptions and APC’s Terms and Conditions carefully.  The pricing is based 

upon Customer’s acceptance of APC’s Clarifications/Assumptions and Terms and Conditions. This Proposal represents our 

complete offering.  If there are any conflicts between Customer’s requirements or plans and specifications and this Proposal,  this 

Proposal shall govern.   

 

PREVAILING WAGE? YES __ NO _X_    TAX EXEMPT? YES _X_ NO __  
If yes, please provide Wage Determination.    If yes, please provide Tax Exemption Certificate. 

ACE PIPE CLEANING, INC. 

 

ACCEPTED by CUSTOMER:   

 

 

Signed: _Jeremy Cheek_______Date__8/12/2022___ 

Title:___Superintendent______________________ 

 

Signed: _________________________Date___________ 

Title:___________________________ 



 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 

 

  



 

Page 3 of 4 

 

CLARIFICATIONS / ASSUMPTIONS 

  
All pricing is conditioned upon the Clarifications/Assumptions listed below.   

 

1. CLARIFICATIONS: 

 

a. The Proposal excludes any sales or use or other similar taxes.   If the Project is tax exempt, Customer shall provide 

APC the appropriate documentation. 

b. Except as otherwise stated herein, the Proposal does not include payment of prevailing wages or certified payroll 

reporting.  If payment of prevailing wages or submission of certified payroll reports is required, Owner shall 

provide a wage determination sheet and/or certified payroll instructions. 

c. Except as otherwise stated herein, the Proposal does not include by-pass pumping. 

d. Any corrections, repairs, or extractions required due to existing structural defects or failures are excluded from 

the Work. 

e. Customer will obtain all necessary permits 

f. APC will provide traffic control (cones) if necessary. 

g. Overtime rates will apply for any work that exceeds an (8) eight-hour workday (applicable to hourly rate quoted).  

h. Price quoted is portal to portal from our location 6601 Universal Ave., Kansas City, MO and is a four-hour minimum 

charge (applicable to hourly rate quoted). 

i. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Proposal is for normal cleaning only.  Normal cleaning is considered 

cleaning requiring three passes or less using high-velocity hydraulic equipment capable of pumping 80 gpm at 

2,000 psi. Heavy cleaning shall be considered all cleaning other than normal cleaning but does not include 

mechanical cleaning with bucket machines and winches.  Heavy cleaning will be charged at a negotiated hourly 

rate. 

 

 

2. ASSUMPTIONS:   

a. Customer will provide free access to the work site which will be adequate for APC’s equipment and will be within 

150 feet from the access point. APC reserves the right to charge Customer if additional mobilizations are required 

if access is not available. 

b. Customer will coordinate the Work with any private property owners. 

c. Customer will provide environmentally responsible disposal site. 

d. Customer will provide water for cleaning and access to hydrant and hydrant meter. 

e. Pricing is subject to change 90 days from the date of the proposal. 

f. There are no hazardous materials present in the project area. 

 

 

 



 

Page 4 of 4 

 

Terms and Conditions 

 

 

1. General Conditions:  These general terms and conditions 

are incorporated by reference into the proposal and are part of the 

Agreement under which services are to be performed by the 

Contractor for the Customer.  Customer’s signature and return of the 

proposal as presented, or Customer’s authorization of Contractor to 

commence the work, shall constitute acceptance of all of its terms and 

conditions. 

 

2. Warranty:  Contractor warrants that its work will be free from 

defects caused by faulty workmanship for a period of twelve months 

after substantial completion of the work.  Any warranty claim must be 

presented in writing to Contractor within 12 months after the 

substantial completion of Contractor’s work, or the claim shall be 

waived.   

 

3. Terms of Payment:  Payments are due within thirty days from 

the submission to Customer of an invoice.  A “past due payment” 

charge of one and one-half percent (1½ %) per month or the 

maximum legal interest rate, whichever is greater, will be made on 

all monies past due and shall be paid immediately.  

 

4. Customer Responsibilities:  Customer will provide 

mechanical services.  Operation and control of Customer’s 

equipment is the Customer’s responsibility. If Contractor’s work is 

interrupted due to circumstances caused or allowed by Customer 

and of which Contractor was not apprised prior to starting the work, 

an hourly fee will be charged. 

 

5. Pre-existing Conditions:  The Contractor is not responsible for 

liability, loss or expense (including damage caused by the backup of 

basement sewers) caused by pre-existing conditions, including 

faulty, inadequate or defective design, construction, maintenance or 

repair of property or contamination of the subsurface where the 

condition existed prior to the start of the Contractor’s work.  

Customer is responsible for loss of service equipment caused by the 

pre-existing condition at the job site.    

 

6. Environmental Conditions: The debris is represented to 

Contractor to be non-hazardous, requiring no manifesting or special 

permitting.  The Customer will be responsible for any additional 

costs or claims associated with the treatment, storage, disposal of the 

removed debris, or breach of the above representation, at any time 

during or after the completion of this project.  Notwithstanding 

anything herein to the contrary, when the Work includes removal of 

industrial waste, Customer represents and warrants it holds clear title 

to all waste debris or other materials Contractor may handle, process 

or transport and Customer agrees to supply all necessary manifests 

or permits and Customer shall indemnify Contractor for liability, loss 

and expense caused by discharge, escape, release of liquids, gases 

or any other material contaminant or pollutant into the atmosphere or 

into or onto land, water or property, except to the extent such liability 

, loss and expense is caused by Contractor’s negligence.   

 

7. Indemnification: The Customer and Contractor will each 

indemnify the other in proportion to relative fault for liability, loss and 

expense incurred by the other party resulting from a negligent act or 

omission in performance of work under this Agreement.  The 

Customer also will indemnify Contractor for liability, loss and 

expense resulting from Contractor services if the Contractor is acting 

at the direction or instruction of the Customer, or where the primary 

cause of any damages is due to information provided by the 

Customer. Where the Customer provides labor for the Contractor, 

the Customer will indemnify the Contractor for liability, loss or 

expense for work related injuries to those laborers not provided by 

the Contractor.   

 

8. Entire Agreement: This proposal together with any written 

documents which may be incorporated by specific references 

herein, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and 

supersedes all previous communications between them, either oral 

or written.  The waiver by Contractor of any term, condition or 

provision herein stated shall not be construed to be a waiver of any 

other term, condition or provision hereof. 

 

9. Performance Dates:  The performance schedule, if stated in the 

proposal, is approximate and is not guaranteed by Contractor. 

Contractor shall not be liable for delays in the progress of the Work 

due to  acts of government, acts of God, adverse weather, war, riot, 

labor disputes, civil insurrection or any other causes beyond 

Contractor’s reasonable control, and the date of performance shall 

be adjusted for any such delays.  Further, Contractor shall not be 

responsible for delays in the project caused by the failure of 

material/equipment suppliers to deliver material, equipment or 

services in the time and manner agreed upon or in the time and 

manner anticipated. 

 

10. Scope Limitations:  Any material, equipment, structure or 

service item that is not explicitly a part of this Contract is specifically 

excluded from Contractor’s Work.   

 

11. Contract Amendments: The following contract amendment 

procedure is to be used for work performed for the Customer by 

Contractor, which is beyond the scope of the proposal.  (a) As change 

order items are identified and before any work is done, Contractor 

and the Customer will review and agree on the work to be performed; 

(b) A contract  amendment or change order will be completed with 

regard to scope and price and any schedule impact. All parties 

involved will sign the contract amendment or change order; and (c) 

Contractor will perform the work and bill the Customer. For time and 

materials work, back-up documentation will be provided. 

 

12. Limitation of Liability:  In no event shall Contractor be liable 

for any indirect, special or consequential loss or damage arising out 

of any work performed for Customer.  To the fullest extent permitted 

by law, the total liability, in the aggregate, of Contractor to Customer 

or anyone claiming by or through Customer, for any and all liabilities, 

claims, losses, expenses, or damages whatsoever arising out of or in 

any way related to Contractor’s services, the Project, or the Proposal, 

from any cause or causes whatsoever, including without limitation, 

negligence, strict liability, indemnity, warranty, or breach of 

contract, shall not exceed the Contract Amount. The Contractor is not 

responsible for the rendering of or failure to render architectural, 

engineering or surveying professional services. Customer and 

Contractor waive all rights of subrogation for claims covered by the 

parties’ insurance. 

 

13. Attorney’s Fees:  The prevailing party in any dispute between 

Contractor and Customer shall be entitled to receive attorneys’ fees, 

court costs and other legal fees from the non-prevailing party.  APC 

shall be entitled to collect reasonable attorney’s fees incurred to 

collect any “past due payments.” 

 

14. NOTICE TO OWNER FAILURE OF THIS CONTRACTOR TO PAY 

THOSE PERSONS SUPPLYING MATERIAL OR SERVICES TO 

COMPLETE THIS CONTRACT CAN RESULT IN THE FILING OF A 

MECHANIC'S LIEN ON THE PROPERTY WHICH IS THE SUBJECT OF 

THIS CONTRACT PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 429, RSMO. TO AVOID 

THIS RESULT, YOU MAY ASK THIS CONTRACTOR FOR "LIEN 

WAIVERS" FROM ALL PERSONS SUPPLYING MATERIAL OR 

SERVICES FOR THE WORK DESCRIBED IN THIS CONTRACT. 

FAILURE TO SECURE LIEN WAIVERS MAY RESULT IN YOUR PAYING 

FOR LABOR AND MATERIAL TWICE. 

 



CITY OFFICE 
417 Broadway • Valley Falls, Kansas 66088-1200 

Phone 785-945-6612  •  Fax 785-945-3341 

 

 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1854 
City Administrator Report 

City Council August 17, 2022 
Projects 
1. CDBG Sewer Project Phase 1- Design and Environmental in progress. Should have final designs in the next couple 

weeks. Bids anticipated for early fall 2022. Construction anticipated in 2023.    
2. CDBG Sewer Project Phase 2 – Preliminary Engineering Report in progress. 2023 CDBG Grant year is pausing the 

sewer/ water grants. Project will be postponed to 2024 if changes are approved.  
3. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) – Projects completed to date include: gWorks Software, RV Park Electrical 

Upgrade. Funds used to date: $23,851.40. Projects pending to date include: K-16 Entry Signs. Funds planned for 
projects: $7,000. Remaining Funds: $145,106.96.  

4. USDOT Safety Action Plan Grant – Applied for the KDOT Cost Share Portion. Applied for the new Unique Entity 
Identifier (UEI) number for the City. Waiting to be able to start grant for the new UEI to be added to the system to 
be able to apply.  

5. Opioid Settlement – We received a first disbursement of $283.10. The Attorney General’s office does not know 
when rest of funds will be disbursed. Anticipated $5/ Capita. 25% of Settlement shared 50/50 with cities and 
counties. Other 75% will be used for grants. This first round of payouts on the settlement will allow partnerships 
with other local entities. 

6. K-4 / K-16 Street Lights – Estimate received from PEC. Around $30,000 to add lighting. KDOT is going to perform a 
safety study. If warranted by KDOT, the light cost will be covered by KDOT. Safety study is anticipated to be 
completed in Spring 2023. 

7. Entry/ Welcome Signs – Received USACE approval. Must apply with KDOT for signs in ROW.  Working with PEC for 
estimate on engineering.  

8. Tucking Lot – working on hauling in dirt and leveling out lot.  
9. Fire Hydrant Testing - KRWA will be flow testing all our fire hydrants after water tower work is complete. This 

service is free. 
10. Automatic Water Meters – 244 meters installed to date. Total of 493 water meters.  
11. Hurst Water Tower – Installed valve. Work anticipated to begin at the end of September/ early October.   
 

Working / In Progress 
1. Budget –Public Hearing for Budget and RNR set for September 7th.  
2. 811 The City of Valley Falls is now live on 811. Notices are being sent by email and text to City Administrator and 

Public Works Director.   
3. Memorandum of Understandings – Received signed MOU from both Athletic Association and Recreation Commission.   
4. Fire Hydrant on Linn – The fire hydrant has had the valve installed and the new hydrant is installed.  
5. Audit –After audit presentation, then the final audit will be sent of to requesting agencies.     
6. Personal Policies & Guidelines – Reviewed with EMC on June 3rd. Final revisions and copy received. Sent to Leonard 

for review. Will review with council at work session in September.  
7. Rate Study – Rate study presentation at City Council on August 17th. After acceptance, new rate ordinances will be 

drafted to be put in place.  
8. Chevy – Currently at Cable Dahmer for repairs. Anticipated to be complete by end of this week.  
9. Community Foundation – Will send check and agreement after this council meeting. 
10. Notary – Changed name on my notary with the state.  
11. Economic Development Board – No quorum for August 15th meeting. Will meet again on Sept 19th.  
12. Planning Commission –Next meeting is September 1st. We now have two vacant spots. There are 4 active members 

on 6-person board. Advertised on for open positions.  
 
 
 

   
  



CITY OFFICE 
417 Broadway • Valley Falls, Kansas 66088-1200 

Phone 785-945-6612  •  Fax 785-945-3341 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Financials 
Fund # Fund Name Previous Balance Current Balance 

100 General Fund $45,771.45 $37,732.36 
160 Pool Reserve $5,579.10 $5,754.10 
200 Capital Improvement Fund $114,463.09 $230,277.82 
300 Special Hwy & Streets $80,344.37 $87,855.77 
400 Equipment Reserve $3,781.71 $3,781.71 
500 Bond & Interest $63,982.08 $95,257.63 
600 RHID $31,611.78 $31,611.78 
720 Water  $135,898.41 $128,268.19 
721 Water Reserve $0.00 $0.00 
730 Sewer $235,013.55 $282,085.49 
731 Sewer Reserve $0.00 $0.00 
740 Solid Waste $59,888.97 $53,612.84 
790 Insurance Reserve $748.00 $748.00 

Total $777,082.51 $956,985.69 
CD # Fund/ Fund Name Previous Balance Current Balance 

Bank 500 Money Market (PBC) $10,066.91 $10,066.91 
X0971 Bond & Interest Fund (500)  $153,500.00 $153,500.00 
X2279 Sewer Fund (730)  $91,083.20 $91,083.20 
X1565 Special Hwy Fund (300) $0.00 $0.00 
X0503 Water Fund (720) $0.00 $0.00 
X0504 Water Fund (720)  $0.00 $0.00 
X0535 Water Fund (720) $0.00 $0.00 

Total $254,650.11 $254,650.11 

Total In Bank $1,031,732.62 $1,211,635.80 
 



417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 

 

   
  

 

Public Works Report 
August 17, 2022 

 
Water: 
We are doing a free chlorine burn in our water system to remove any algae that may be present 
Got the easy valve installed on the hydrant at 5th and Linn we were able to install just one cutting the cost in half 
Replaced the leaking Hydrant on Linn and 5th 
Flushing the hydrants to help get chlorine levels higher throughout the system   
  
Sewers: 
Douglas Pump Co. came to replace the discharge valve at the lagoon but was unable to due to a clogged line 
Contacted Ace pipe cleaning to come unclog the line at the Lagoon 
Had to jet the sewer line behind the carwash due to a blockage in the line caused by silt, sand, towels, and tree roots 
 
Parks: 
Had to repair the fuel tank on one of the mowers due to it getting a hole in it from the hydraulic cooling fan coming in 
contact with it from a plugged vent tube causing the fuel tank to swell 
Returned the power broom to Foley rentals 
We will be planting the trees in the park soon we wanted to wait for cooler and wetter weather to give them the best 
chance of survival 
Pond on Oak St is clearing the duckweed is all but eliminated we will be treating the remaining growth as needed to 
prevent a regrowth and to clear it more    
  
  
General: 
Repainted the Cross walk at Oak and 9th street 
Got the school lights working again for the school year 
 



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTIONS  
There is no standard format for the motion to recess into executive session which will apply to all 
situations.  Because the statutory language requires the motion contain both the “justification” and 
the “subjects” to be discussed, the motion should include the statutory reason for recessing into 
executive session and a more specific description of the topic for discussion. 
 

1. Statutory reason for non –elected personnel needs a more specific reason which could be 
Individual employee’s performance 

I move the city council recess into executive session to discuss an individual employee’s performance 
pursuant to the non-elected personnel matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319 (b) (1) to include: (people to 
participate besides governing body.) The open meeting will resume in the city council room at 
____PM.  
 

2. Statutory reason for Attorney – Client privilege needs a more specific reason which could be 
discuss contract, Litigation, Claim, or other such more specific item. 

I move the city council recess into executive session to discuss a claim pursuant to Attorney – Client 
privilege matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(2) to include: the City Attorney and (people to 
participate besides governing body.) The open meeting will resume in the city council room at 
_____PM.  
 

3. For employer-employee negations a more specific description could be salary. 
I move the city council recess into executive session to discuss salary pursuant to employer-employee 
negotiations matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b) (3) to include: (people to participate besides 
governing body.) The open meeting will resume in the city council room at _____PM.  
 

4. For property acquisition matters a more specific description could be purchase cost. 
I move the city council recess into executive session to preliminary discuss purchase cost pursuant to  
property acquisition matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(6) to include: (people to participate besides 
governing body.) The open meeting will resume in the city council room at _____PM.  
 
 
K.S.A. 75-4319. Closed or executive meetings; conditions; authorized subjects for discussion; binding 
action prohibited; certain documents identified in meetings not subject to disclosure. (a) Upon formal 
motion made, seconded and carried, all bodies and agencies subject to the open meetings act 
may recess, but not adjourn, open meetings for closed or executive meetings. Any motion to recess 
for a closed or executive meeting shall include a statement of (1) the justification for closing the 
meeting, (2) the subjects to be discussed during the closed or executive meeting and (3) the time 
and place at which the open meeting shall resume. Such motion, including the required statement, 
shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting and shall be maintained as a part of the permanent 
records of the body or agency. Discussion during the closed or executive meeting shall be limited to 
those subjects stated in the motion. (b) No subjects shall be discussed at any closed or executive 
meeting, except the following: 
(1) Personnel matters of nonelected personnel;  
(2) consultation with an attorney for the body or agency which would be deemed privileged in the 
attorney-client relationship;  
(3) matters relating to employer-employee negotiations whether or not in consultation with the 
representative or representatives of the body or agency;  
(4) confidential data relating to financial affairs or trade secrets of corporations, partnerships, trusts, 
and individual proprietorships;  
(5) matters relating to actions adversely or favorably affecting a person as a student, patient or 
resident of a public institution, except that any such person shall have the right to a public hearing if 
requested by the person;  
(6) preliminary discussions relating to the acquisition of real property; 


	Agenda 08.17.2022
	Council Minutes 08-03-22
	Council Minutes 08-10-22
	AP
	Vouchers facesheet
	AP Report

	Public Comment Policy
	Petition to Vacate USD 338
	Petition for School
	Petition to Vacate USD 338
	Petition to Vacate USD 338
	2022-05 School
	School building
	298314796_442621001124778_8428000627493332221_n - Copy
	Planning Commission Minutes
	City Council Minutes

	20220812124859


	Audit
	Rep Letter
	Engagement Letter
	City of Valley Falls 12-31-21 Audit Report

	Ordiance 14.209.1
	ACE Pipecleaning
	1. CLARIFICATIONS:

	City Admin Report
	Public Works Report
	Executive Session Motion

